
Work Session Minutes 03-17-16 

 1 

City of Washington Terrace 2 

_________________________________________________ 3 

Minutes of a City Council Work Session  4 

Held on March 17, 2016 5 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 6 

County of Weber, State of Utah 7 
 8 

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 9 
Mayor Mark C. Allen 10 

Council Member Scott Monsen 11 

Council Member Blair Brown  12 

Council Member Robert Jensen  13 

Council Member Scott Barker 14 

Council Member Val Shupe 15 

Finance Director Shari’ Garrett 16 

Treasurer Laura Gamon 17 

City Manager Tom Hanson 18 

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez  19 

 20 

Others Present 21 
None 22 

  23 
 24 

1.     ROLL CALL                                                 5:00 P.M. 25 

 26 

2. WORK SESSION                                             27 
       Topic to include, but are not limited to: Continuation of the discussions on the Water  28 

        Consumption Response Plan 29 

 30 

The Work Session was a continuation of the discussion concerning the Water Consumption Response 31 

Plan which was held on March 15, 2016. 32 

Garrett explained the issue at hand, which is that billable gallons used has declined and the water and 33 

sewer funds are coming in lower than expected. 34 

She explained that the rate increases over the last 10 years were to keep the revenue and expenses 35 

balanced. She stated that inflation has also played a part in the rate increases. She explained that system 36 

improvements account for other increases to the rate structure.  37 

Garrett stated that the City relies on overage costs to help lessen the gap. She stated that because 38 

consumption is low, the City is not meeting projected revenue to operate the system. Hanson stated that 39 

the City does not have left over water and needs to buy more water. Garrett stated that she has never seen 40 

the water consumption this low in the last 15 years.  41 

Hanson stated that water prices increase every year, mostly due to maintenance and operating costs. 42 

Mayor Allen clarified that the options to be considered are only for water and sewer. He stated that refuse 43 

and storm water are a separate cost on the bill and may possibly have to increase. 44 

Garrett stated that the continual shortfall will be $75,000 for water and $65,000 for sewer. She stated that 45 

this will continue until people use more water or if rates are raised. 46 

Mayor Allen reviewed the five options for the Response Plan. 47 

Mayor Allen suggested that it is possible to cut back on capital and not raise rates this year and see if the 48 

trend reverses. He noted that if the trend continues, the issue will need to be revisited in a few years. 49 



Work Session Minutes 03-17-16 

Garrett stated that if capital operations are cut, projects will be pushed off to later dates. Garrett stated 50 

that it is possible that this is an anomaly this year. 51 

Council Member Shupe stated that he would like to see if it stabilizes this year and then raise the rates 52 

next year if the consumption is still lower. He stated that Council has more credibility if they are able to 53 

say that the City has done all they could over the year to see where the trend is going and then raise the 54 

rates if the revenues are not coming in. Mayor Allen agreed and likes option 1: no rate increase, decrease 55 

capital. Council Member Barker stated that he would like to see a slight increase in base rate and 56 

decrease capital so that there is not a giant increase at once (option 4). Council Member Brown stated that 57 

he is convinced that the residents cannot afford a raise. He stated that he would like to see no increases 58 

for a year and to make cuts to make up some of the shortfall. He suggested that one of the cuts could be 59 

in the fleet management program. He suggested not rolling the vehicles over as quickly, or possibly 60 

purchasing lesser expensive vehicles. Council Member Brown stated that he would like to see a year of 61 

cut backs with no rates increases, and then raise rates next year if the problem still exists. He stated that 62 

there are other areas that can have cut-backs.  Hanson stated that the fleet replacement program almost 63 

washes itself out. He stated that the average cost per vehicle for maintenance is around $500.00 per year, 64 

as opposed to historically $2000.00 a year. Council Member Brown stated that he is convinced that the 65 

water consumption is the new normal and would like to save the residents a year of rate increases and 66 

educate them so that they can prepare for the increase that is going to happen.   67 

Garrett stated that she is still drafting the fee schedule. Garrett stated that it is likely that there may be an 68 

increase in the refuse fund. She also noted that the City does not know what the storm water audit will 69 

show and there may be costs to become compliant. 70 

Council Member Shupe stated that state mandated fees or refuse fees can be passed on to residents, but 71 

noted that the City has control over the water and has more latitude in saying no increases until we 72 

absolutely have too. Hanson stated that some capital improvements can be pushed back a year and the 73 

city would still be alright. 74 

Garrett stated that all of the City costs are market price. 75 

Council Member Jensen stated that he agrees with Council Member Shupe to let it go for now and 76 

prepare residents for future increases. He stated that the City should not make a quick decision, and to see 77 

what happens over the year and prepare. 78 

Council Member Jensen stated that he would like to see the fleet management process continue on a lease 79 

basis. Council Member Shupe stated that there is a trade-off in paying the 3 percent interest which is that 80 

the money is retained in the budget. He also agrees that the plan should continue but he would like to see 81 

it on a lease. Council Member Monsen stated that he feels there was a mistake in not raising rates over 82 

the last two years. He stated that he would like to see a 2 or 5 percent increase this year rather than a 20 83 

percent increase next year. He stated that he feels that people can handle small increases. He stated that 84 

he agrees with Council Member Shupe that it may not be a permanent trend and doesn’t not want to panic 85 

on a two year trend. He stated that there is only so much water that can be conserved and it will have to 86 

level out at some point. 87 

Mayor Allen stated that it looks like the consensus is to keep rates at the same level and watch the trend.  88 

 89 

 90 
 91 
3.    ADJOURN THE WORK SESSION: MAYOR ALLEN  92 
       Mayor Allen adjourned the work session at 5:51 p.m. 93 

 94 

____________________________________       ______________________________ 95 

Date Approved                                    City Recorder 96 


